
 
AGENDA 

 
COUNTY OF KERN 

COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PARTNERSHIP (CCP) 
CCP FULL MEMBERSHIP (Referred to as “CCP”) 

CCP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (Referred to as “Executive Committee”) 
 

5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite #100 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, December 11, 2024 
 

8:30 A.M. 
 
 

 
 
CCP TO CONVENE 
 
CCP Members:  Chief William Dickinson, Court Executive Officer Tara Leal (designee for Judge Bradshaw), 
District Attorney Cynthia Zimmer, Public Defender Peter Kang, Sheriff Donny Youngblood, Director Alison 
Burrowes, Police Chief Greg Terry, Administrator Ana Olvera, Director Lito Morillo, Executive Director Tom 
Corson, Supervisor Leticia Perez, Chief Workforce Development Officer Brandon Evans, Superintendent 
John Mendiburu, Victim Services Coordinator Kayla Pinkston 
ROLL CALL: 
 
NOTE: COVID protection protocols will be followed in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local 
orders.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A “CA” ARE 
CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL BY STAFF AND WILL BE APPROVED 
BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR PUBLIC WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK 
QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE 
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN THE LISTED SEQUENCE 
WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SHOWN IN 
CAPS AFTER EACH ITEM.  
 
CA- 
1) Minutes from CCP Meeting of September 11, 2024 – APPROVE 
  

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code §54953.2) 

 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Community 
Corrections Partnership (CCP) or the CCP Executive Committee may request assistance at the Kern County 
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California, or by calling (661) 868-4100. Every effort will be 
made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative 
formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
 

All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review by contacting the office of the Kern County 
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California 93305 during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. 
to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding County recognized holidays, following the posting of the agenda. 
The agenda is posted on-line at www.kernprobation.org. 



Agenda – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 2 
Regular Meeting  12/11/24 

 
2) Public Presentations 

The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items 
are discussed by the CCP. This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the CCP 
on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the CCP. CCP members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed.  They may ask a question for clarification and, through 
the CCP, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the CCP at 
a later meeting. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL 
YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU 
 
 

3) Chairperson’s Report (Chief Dickinson)  
General update and/or information on AB 109 Realignment activities (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
MAKE PRESENTATION; NO ACTION REQUIRED 
 
 

4) CCP Committee Member Announcements or Reports  
CCP members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s activities.  They 
may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a matter 
of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) – MAKE ANNOUNCEMENTS OR 
REPORTS 
 

CA- 
5) FY 2024-25 1st Quarter – Data Trackers 

Submission of data trackers for AB 109 funded departments/programs for FY 2024-25, July 1, 2024 
through September 30, 2024 (Fiscal Impact: None) – RECEIVE AND FILE 

 
 
6) Employers’ Training Resource (ETR) Request for Contingency Funds for Paid Work Experience 

(PWEX) and Supportive Services for AB 109 Participants 
Request $216,000 from Contingency Funds to supplement Paid Work Experience (PWEX) and 
supportive Services for AB 109 participants (Fiscal Impact: $216,000) – DISCUSS; MAKE 
RECOMMENDATION TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
 
7) CCP Meeting Schedule – DISCUSS; ANNOUNCE 

 Wednesday, March 12, 2025 @ 8:30 a.m.  
 Wednesday, April 30, 2025 @ 8:30 a.m. (Special Meeting) 
 Wednesday, June 11, 2025 @ 8:30 a.m. 
 Wednesday, September 10, 2025 @ 8:30 a.m. 
 Wednesday, December 10, 2025 @ 8:30 a.m. 

 
 
8) ADJOURN AS CCP 
 
  
 
 
CONVENE TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
Executive Committee Members: Chief Dickinson, Court Executive Officer Leal (designee for Judge 
Bradshaw), District Attorney Zimmer, Public Defender Kang, Sheriff Youngblood, Director Burrowes, Police 
Chief Terry 
ROLL CALL: 
  



Agenda – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 3 
Regular Meeting  12/11/24 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A “CA” ARE 
CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL BY STAFF AND WILL BE APPROVED 
BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR PUBLIC WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK 
QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE 
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN THE LISTED SEQUENCE  
WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SHOWN IN 
CAPS AFTER EACH ITEM. 
 
1) Minutes from Executive Committee Meeting of September 11, 2024 – APPROVE 
 
 
2) Public Presentations 

The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items 
are discussed by the CCP. This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the CCP 
on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the CCP. CCP members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification and, through 
the CCP, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the CCP at 
a later meeting. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL 
YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU 
 
 

3) Executive Committee Member Announcements or Reports  
CCP members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s activities.  They 
may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a matter 
of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) – MAKE ANNOUNCEMENTS OR 
REPORTS 

 
 
4) Employers’ Training Resource (ETR) Request for Contingency Funds for Paid Work Experience 

(PWEX) and Supportive Services for AB 109 Participants 
Discuss recommendation by full CCP requesting approval for $216,000 to supplement Paid Work 
Experience (PWEX) and supportive services for AB 109 participants (Fiscal Impact: $216,000) – 
CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP; APPROVE 

 
 
5) CCP Meeting Schedule immediately following full CCP meeting – DISCUSS; ANNOUNCE 

 Wednesday, March 12, 2025 @ 8:30 a.m.  
 Wednesday, April 30, 2025 @ 8:30 a.m. (Special Meeting) 
 Wednesday, June 11, 2025 @ 8:30 a.m. 
 Wednesday, September 10, 2025 @ 8:30 a.m. 
 Wednesday, December 10, 2025 @ 8:30 a.m. 

 
 
6) ADJOURN AS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 



 
 

 MINUTES 

COUNTY OF KERN 
COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PARTNERSHIP (CCP) 

CCP FULL MEMBERSHIP (Referred to as “CCP”) 
CCP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (Referred to as “Executive Committee”) 

 
5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite #100 

Bakersfield, California 93309 
 

Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, September 11, 2024 

 

8 :30 A.M. 
 
 

 

 
 

CCP TO CONVENE 
 

CCP Members: Chief William Dickinson, Court Executive Officer Tara Leal (designee for Judge Bradshaw), 
District Attorney Cynthia Zimmer, Public Defender Peter Kang, Sheriff Donny Youngblood, Director Alison 
Burrowes, Police Chief Greg Terry, Administrator Ana Olvera, Director Lito Morillo, Executive Director Tom 
Corson, Supervisor Leticia Perez, Chief Workforce Development Officer Aaron Ellis, Superintendent John 
Mendiburu, Victim Services Coordinator Kayla Pinkston 
 
ROLL CALL: All members present except for the following, District Attorney Cynthia Zimmer (Joseph Kinzel 
for District Attorney Zimmer), Supervisor Perez, Superintendent John Mendiburu (Amanda Thomas for 
Superintendent Mendiburu), Public Defender Kang (Thomas Pope for Public Defender Kang), and Sheriff 
Donny Youngblood (Larry McCurtain for Sheriff Youngblood), Police Chief Greg Terry 

 
NOTE: COVID protection protocols will be followed in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local 
orders. 

 

C ONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A “CA” ARE 
CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL BY STAFF AND WILL BE APPROVED 
BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR PUBLIC WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK 
QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE 
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN THE LISTED SEQUENCE 
WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SHOWN IN 
CAPS AFTER EACH ITEM. 

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code §54953.2) 

Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Community 
Corrections Partnership (CCP) or the CCP Executive Committee may request assistance at the Kern County 
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California, or by calling (661) 868-4100. Every effort will be 
made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative 
formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 

All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review by contacting the office of the Kern County 
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California 93305 during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. 
to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding County recognized holidays, following the posting of the agenda. 
The agenda is posted on-line at w ww.kernprobation.org. 

CCP Item #1 / EC Item #1 



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership Page 2 
Regular Meeting 09/11/24 

 

 
CA- 
1)   Minutes from CCP Meeting of June 12, 2024 

 

MOTIONED TO APPROVE 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Kinzel-Morillo: 12 – Ayes; 2 – Absent (Perez, Terry) 
MOTION PASSED 

 
 

2)  Public Presentations 
The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items 
are discussed by the CCP. This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the CCP 
on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the CCP. CCP members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification and, through 
the CCP, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the CCP at 
a later meeting. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL 
YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU 
-NO PRESENTATIONS MADE 

 
 

3)  Chairperson’s Report (Chief Dickinson) 
General update and/or information on AB 109 Realignment activities (Fiscal Impact: None) – MAKE 
PRESENTATION; NO ACTION REQUIRED 
 
CHIEF DICKINSON ANNOUNCED 1) GROWTH FUNDS WILL BE RELEASED AROUND 
OCTOBER OR NOVEMBER AND WILL BE DISCUSSED AT THE NEXT MEETING, 2) THE BOARD 
OF STATE AND COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS (BSCC) SURVEY FUNDING WAS ELIMINATED 
AND FURTHER INQUIRY WILL BE MADE REGARDING SURVEY SUBMISSION REQUIREMENT, 
3) CHIEF DICKINSON CONGRATULATED WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT OFFICER AARON 
ELLIS ON HIS RETIREMENT AND THANKED HIM FOR HIS SERVICES TO THE CCP AND THE 
COMMUNITY. 
 
CAO ANALYST JOSEPH ARRIOLA PROVIDED A BRIEF UPDATE REGARDING YEAR END 2023-
24 BASE FUND. THE COUNTY DID NOT RECEIVE THE BASE ESTIMATE BY APPROXIMATELY 
$300,000.  THE AMOUNT IS LESS THAN 1% OF THE YEAR’S PROJECTED REVENUE.  THE 
CAO’S OFFICE WILL PROVIDE A RECOMMENDATION AT THE NEXT MEETING FOR 
APPROVAL TO USE A PORTION OF THE $10.9 MILLION RESERVE TO BACKFILL THE 
SHORTFALL. 
 

 
4)  CCP Committee Member Announcements or Reports 

CCP members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s activities. They 
may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a matter 
of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) – MAKE ANNOUNCEMENTS OR 
REPORTS 
 
CHIEF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT OFFICER AARON ELLIS ANNOUNCED HIS 
RETIREMENT. HE INTRODUCED BRANDON EVANS AS THE NEW CHIEF WORKFORCE 
DEVELOPMENT OFFICER AND WILL BE ATTENDING THE DECEMBER MEETING.  
 
ADMINISTRATOR ANA OLVERA ANNOUNCED SEPTEMBER AS SUICIDE PREVENTION AND 
RECOVERY MONTH. AN EVENT FOR RECOVERY IS SCHEDULED ON  9/28/24 AT MILL CREEK 
PARK. 

  



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership Page 3 
Regular Meeting 09/11/24 

CA- 
5)  FY 2023-24 4th Quarter – Data Trackers

Submission of data trackers for AB 109 funded departments/programs for FY 2023-24, April 1, 2024
through June 30, 2024 (Fiscal Impact: None) –

MOTIONED TO RECEIVE AND FILE
Public Comment:
NO ONE HEARD
Kinzel-Morillo: 12 – Ayes; 2 – Absent (Perez, Terry)
MOTION PASSED

CA- 
6)  Request Funding and Authorization to Enter into Personal/Professional Services Agreement(s)

((PPSA) for Sober-Living Environment Services for Individuals with Unique Needs
Request $150,000 from Community-Based Organization (CBO) program fund to provide sober-living 
environment services for individuals with unique needs (Fiscal Impact: $150,000) –

MOTIONED TO RECOMMEND TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO ALLOCATE $150,000 FROM 
CBO PROGRAM FUND AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO ENTER INTO PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT(S) TO PROVIDE SOBER-LIVING ENVIRONMENT SERVICES FOR 
INDIVIDUALS WITH UNIQUE NEEDS
Public Comment:
NO ONE HEARD
Kinzel-Morillo: 12 – Ayes; 2 – Absent (Perez, Terry)
MOTION PASSED

CA- 
7)  Employers’ Training Resource (ETR) Request for Contingency Funds for Paid Work Experience

((PWEX) and Supportive Services for AB 109 Participants
Request $46,035 from Contingency fund to supplement Paid Work Experience (PWEX) and
supportive services for AB 109 participants (Fiscal Impact: $46,035) –

MOTIONED TO RECOMMEND TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE $46,035 FROM
CONTINGENCY FUND TO SUPPLEMENT PAID WORK EXPERIENCE (PWEX) AND
SUPPORTIVE SERVICES FOR AB 109 PARTICIPANTS
Public Comment:
NO ONE HEARD
Kinzel-Morillo: 12 – Ayes; 2 – Absent (Perez, Terry)
MOTION PASSED

CA- 
8)  Street Interdiction Team (SIT) Funds Request for SIT Operation Patches

Request $900 from SIT program fund to purchase 300 SIT operation patches (Fiscal Impact: $900)
–
MOTIONED TO RECOMMEND TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE $900 FROM SIT
PROGRAM FUND TO PURCHASE 300 SIT OPERATION PATCHES
Public Comment:
NO ONE HEARD
Kinzel-Morillo: 12 – Ayes; 2 – Absent (Perez, Terry)
MOTION PASSED

9)  Proposals of Unexpended/Carryforward FY 2023-24 AB 109 Funds
Present and discuss proposals for carryforward of unexpended FY 2023-24 AB 109 funds as of June
30, 2024 (Fiscal Impact: $2,670,227) –



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership Page 4 
Regular Meeting 09/11/24  
 

a) SSheriff 
Request to carryforward Base Funds for the new Jail Management System (JMS), project 
management services, inmate telephone services contract, and associated cost for a Behavioral 
Health Recovery Specialist position (Fiscal Impact: $2,010,642) – PRESENTATON MADE 

 
b) S treet Interdiction Team 

Request to carryforward AB 109 Base Funds to increase the number of operations in FY 2024- 
25 (Fiscal Impact: $659,585) – PRESENTATION MADE 
 

MOTIONED TO RECOMMEND TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE FY 2023-24 
CARRYFOWARD REQUESTS AS PRESENTED AND AUTHORIZE CHAIR TO SUBMIT TO THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL  
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Dickinson – Yes; Leal – Abstain; Zimmer (Kinzel for Zimmer) – Yes; Kang (Pope 
for Kang) – Yes; Youngblood (McCurtain for Youngblood) – Yes, Terry – Absent; Olvera – Yes; Morillo 
– Yes; Corson – Yes; Perez – Absent; Ellis – Yes; Mendiburu (Thomas for Mendiburu) – Yes; Pinkston 
– Yes 
Corson-Ellis: 11 – Ayes; 1 – Abstain (Leal); 2 – Absent (Perez, Terry) 
MOTION PASSED 
 

 
10)  Next CCP Meeting 

 
➢ Wednesday, December 11, 2024, 8:30 a.m. at the Probation Office, 5121 Stockdale Highway, 

Suite #100, Bakersfield - ANNOUNCED 
 
 

11) ADJOURNED AS CCP AT 8:40 A.M. IN HONOR OF PATRIOT’S DAY 
  

 
 CONVENED TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AT 8:43 A.M. 
  

Executive Committee Members: Chief Dickinson, Court Executive Officer Leal (designee for Judge 
Bradshaw), District Attorney Zimmer, Public Defender Kang, Sheriff Youngblood, Director Burrowes, Police 
Chief Terry 
 
ROLL CALL: All members present except for the following, District Attorney Cynthia Zimmer (Joseph Kinzel 
for District Attorney Zimmer), Public Defender Kang (Thomas Pope for Public Defender Kang), Sheriff 
Donny Youngblood (Larry McCurtain for Sheriff Youngblood), Police Chief Greg Terry 

 
 

C ONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A “CA” ARE 
CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL BY STAFF AND WILL BE APPROVED 
BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR PUBLIC WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK 
QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE 
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN THE LISTED SEQUENCE 
WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SHOWN IN 
CAPS AFTER EACH ITEM. 

 
CA- 
1)  Minutes from Executive Committee Meeting of June 12, 2024  

MOTIONED TO APPROVE 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Kinzel-Burrowes: 6 – Ayes; 1 – Absent (Terry) 
MOTION PASSED 

  



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership Page 5 
Regular Meeting 09/11/24  
 
2)  Public Presentations 

The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items 
are discussed by the CCP. This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the CCP 
on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the CCP. CCP members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification and, through 
the CCP, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the CCP at 
a later meeting. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL 
YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU 
-NO PRESENTATIONS MADE 
 

 
3)  Executive Committee Member Announcements or Reports 

CCP members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s activities. They 
may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a matter 
of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) – MAKE ANNOUNCEMENTS OR 
REPORTS 
-NO PRESENTATIONS MADE 
 

CA- 
4)  Request Funding and Authorization to Enter into Personal/Professional Services Agreement(s) 

((PPSA) for Sober-Living Environment Services for Individuals with Unique Needs 
Discuss recommendation by full CCP requesting approval for $150,000 from CBO program fund and 
authorization to enter into Personal/Professional Services Agreement(s) to provide sober-living 
environment services for individuals with unique needs (Fiscal Impact: $150,000) – 
 
MOTIONED TO APPROVE RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP TO ALLOCATE $150,000 FROM 
CBO PROGRAM FUND AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO ENTER INTO PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT(S) TO PROVIDE SOBER-LIVING ENVIRONMENT SERVICES FOR 
INDIVIDUALS WITH UNIQUE NEEDS 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Kinzel-Burrowes: 6 – Ayes; 1 – Absent (Terry) 
MOTION PASSED 

 
CA- 
5)  Employers’ Training Resource (ETR) Request for Contingency Funds for Paid Work Experience 

(PWEX) and Supportive Services for AB 109 Participants 
Discuss recommendation by full CCP requesting approval for $46,035 to supplement Paid Work 
Experience (PWEX) and supportive services for AB 109 participants (Fiscal Impact: $46,035) – 
 
MOTIONED TO APPROVE RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP TO ALLOCATE $46,035 FROM 
CONTINGENCY FUND TO SUPPLEMENT PAID WORK EXPERIENCE (PWEX) AND 
SUPPORTIVE SERVICES FOR AB 109 PARTICIPANTS  
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Kinzel-Burrowes: 6 – Ayes; 1 – Absent (Terry) 
MOTION PASSED 
 

CA- 
6)  Street Interdiction Team (SIT) Funds Request for SIT Operation Patches 

Discuss recommendation by full CCP requesting approval for $900 from SIT program fund to 
purchase 300 SIT operation patches (Fiscal Impact: $900) – 
 
MOTIONED TO APPROVE RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP TO ALLOCATE $900 FROM SIT 
PROGRAM FUND TO PURCHASE 300 SIT OPERATION PATCHES 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Kinzel-Burrowes: 6 – Ayes; 1 – Absent (Terry) 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership Page 6 
Regular Meeting 09/11/24  

 
7) Proposals of Unexpended/Carryforward FY 2023-24 AB 109 Funds 

Discuss recommendation by full CCP regarding carryforward of unexpended FY 2023-24 AB 109 
funds as of June 30, 2024 (Fiscal Impact: $2,670,227) – 

 
a) SSheriff 

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request to carryforward funds (Fiscal Impact: 
$2,010,642) – 

 
a) S treet Interdiction Team 

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request to carryforward funds (Fiscal Impact: 
$659,585) – 
 

MOTIONED FOR RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP TO APPROVE FY 2023-24 
CARRYFORWARD REQUESTS AS PRESENTED AND AUTHORIZE CHAIR TO SUBMIT TO 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Dickinson – Yes; Leal – Abstain; Zimmer (Kinzel for Zimmer) – Yes; Kang (Pope 
for Kang) – Yes; Youngblood (McCurtain for Youngblood) – Yes; Burrowes – Yes; Terry – Absent 
Burrowes-Kinzel: 5 – Ayes; 1 – Abstain (Leal); 1 – Absent (Terry) 
MOTION PASSED 

 
 

8)  Next CCP Meeting 
 

 Wednesday, December 11, 2024, immediately following the full CCP meeting, at the Probation 
Office, 5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite #100, Bakersfield - ANNOUNCED 

 
 

9) ADJOURNED AS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AT 8:45 A.M. 



Jul Aug Sep

Jail Beds Saved: PRCS 203 251 185
Part I FY 23/24 FY 24/25

EMP Releases 116 FLASH 39 38 39 Homicide 6 9 50% FY 23/24 FY 24/25

Assaults on Staff 2 4
Work Release 381  PC 3056 94 115 87 Rape 47 59 26%

Inmate Fights 219 441
NNN 22 18 25 Burglary 382 395 3%

Safety Cell Usage 65 12
EMP W/R Total GTA 773 553 -28%

July 139 231 370 Crimes in Jail 2 1
Robbery 125 112 -10%

August 118 255 373 Suicide Watch 384 440
Part II FY 23/24 FY 24/25

September 108 273 381 Narcotics 462 453 -2% EID Device 5 2

Total: 365 759 1,124 Loitering 16 18 13%

Vandalism 708 749 6%

Inmates Participating 43

23

$1,109

1
38

136 2,077

2,264

Cohort 36 completed          

with 15 participants successfully

completing the program.

In collaboration with Kern Behavioral 

Health, 2 additional Matrix groups began                

at the Pre-Trial Facility.

Updates from the Lerdo Jail...

Genetic Tests Conducted

Reduced Child Support $

Inquiries Received from Inmates
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

% of Change:   9 %

i.e. Murder, Kidnapping, Car Jacking, Sexual

900 Gang Members In Custody

Program News

Cohort 37 began with

20 participants.

Of those graduates, 1 was realeased

on EMP and 6 others were released to                

a Sober Living Environment.

Average Daily Arrests

Child Support Services      Gang Members:

80

1,790

1,927

% Change

Work Release Total Revenue:

$ 39,176.98  

Fed Caps
FY 23/24

FY 24/25

Average Daily Population

Total County Jail Beds

- Home, Field, Office, Phone

74 Worksites/321 Workers  

 Battery, Crimes Against Children & Assault

366 with Violent Charges

 67 Referred to Employers' Training Resource

432 Completed a Virtual Custody Program

Contact Made      

Co-Response Team

   Active Caseload

Kern County Sheriff Data Trackers 
FY 24/25 - 1st Quarter (July 1, 2024 - September 30, 2024)

Crime Stats

Jail Population/Demographics

Sheriff Reported Crimes:

% Change

Jail IncidentsVirtual Jail

 Change in Total            

Jail Incidents:

Arrest Stats

Active Participants 

34,463

10 % Female90 % Male

Gang  
AB109  

Gang      
Non- AB109

Non-Gang Member

45.1 %

16.2%

32.29%

51.51%

50 %

RSAT

CCP Item #5



2132

DASHBOARD REPORT
FY 24/25 - 1st Quarter

July 1, 2024 - September 30, 2024

76 110,358

Kern County Probation Department
"Commitment to a Safe Community"

Successful Reintegration into the Community

Commitment to a Safe Community

Day Reporting Center (DRC) Adult Programs Center (APC)

Community Service Hours Participants Enrolled Aftercare

AB 109 DATA TRACKERS

During this quarter, officers assigned to the Post Release Community Supervision (PRCS) unit
conducted a home call in the 900 block of Oxford Street in Delano. Officers contacted a subject
who lived in the home of a PRCS offender. During the search, officers located a Palmetto State
Armory 9mm semi-auto handgun, a Panzer Arms 12-gauge shotgun, 2 Panzer Arms magazines
loaded with 5 live 12-gauge ammunition rounds, 9 magazines loaded to full capacity with 9mm
ammunition, one box of “Blazer” 9mm ammunition containing 30 live rounds, and two “Winchester”
.45 caliber live ammunition rounds in the subject’s possession. During the seize, the subject was
determined to be a prohibited person. As a result, the subject was arrested for possession of a
firearm by a felon and possession of ammunition by a prohibited person.

6%

11%

6%

18%

59%

11%
16%

9%

37%

27%
29% 30%

6%

13%

22%

Low Mod High Drug High Prop High Viol

Static Risk Assessment (SRA) Offender's Risk to Recidivate                                                           

PRCS

MS

FP

Program Services:

• Effective Practices in Community Supervision (EPICS) • Thinking for a Change (T4C) 
• Moral Reconation Therapy (MRT) • Aggression Replacement Training (ART) 

Program Services:

• Abuse Testing • Aftercare • Alcohol/Substance • Anger Management • Assessment •
Behavior Change Plan • Budgeting/Money Management • Cognitive/Life Skills • Daily 
Check-In • Discharge Planning • Domestic Violence • Educational Services • Gender

Responsive Trauma • Job Readiness/Search • Parenting/Family • Referrals

Post Release
Community Supervision

2,151

Mandatory 
Supervision

648

Felony 
Probation

6,686

Total

9,485

During the quarter, the Kern County Probation Department held their annual graduation ceremony
to celebrate 35 graduates who successfully completed their Adult Programs Center (APC)
courses. These participants successfully completed the following required classes: Aggression
Replacement Training (ART), Thinking for a Change (T4C), Moral Reconation Therapy (MRT), or
Cognitive Behavioral Interventions Substance Use Adult (CBI-SUA). Out of this group, two APC
participants gave heartfelt and eloquent speeches about their achievements, and how they were
able to attain their goals within the APC program. In addition, six APC graduates were recognized
for their success and received the following awards “Perfect Attendance”, “Outstanding
Participation”, and “Outstanding Progress”. The APC graduates were celebrated at the formal
ceremony by friends and family. The Probation Management Team and Probation Officers
attended to show support for these extraordinary individuals.

45

5
2

0

10

20

30

40

50

PRCS MS FP

APC's Quarterly Participant Profile by Supervision Type

30

13

2
6

1

0

10

20

30

40

HIGH VIOLENT HIGH PROPERTY HIGH DRUG MODERATE LOW

APC's Quarterly Participant Profile by SRA Assessment
(Noncumulative Count)

(Noncumulative Count)



Services  

Supporting 

Reintegration: 

Evidence Based 

Practices and 

Strategies  

Substance Use 

Disorder 

Treatment 

Case 

Management 

Psychiatric and 

Medication 

Services 

Trauma 

Informed 

Services 

Linkage to 

Community 

Resources 

Individual and 

Group 

Counseling 

Training 

Incarceration Hosp Homeless

0

500

1,000

1,500

410

28

1,310

179
13

709

MH Data and Outcomes (n=7 prior; n=40 since Tx)

Prior 12 months Since Treatment

1

10

100

1000
233

2

539

1,325

7

1

17 31

SUD Data and Outcomes (n=18 prior Tx; n=6 since Tx)

Prior 12 months Since Treatment

9

4

7

5

8
12

3

0

2

0

38

0 10 20 30 40

CWIC Admissions

Homeless

Incarceration

PEC Admission

MET Calls

Discharged

Hospitalizations

Incoming Transfer

LPS Conserved

After-Hour Calls

Client Census

Telecare

Housing Support Services 

Short Term:        Specialty Transitional: 
Days 180 Days 93 

Requests 

Processed 

6 Requests 

Processed 

3 

Unique Client 

Count 

4 Unique Client 

Count 

3 

Amount Spent $4,828 Amount 

Spent 

$2,821 

69

12

146

9

2

0

0

0 50 100 150 200

# New Clients:  
#Unique Individuals Served:

# Services Provided:  

# 5150s: 
# Remanded:

# MH Assessments:

# Psych Hospitalizations:  

Co-Response Teams AB 109s & High Utilizers

Success Story 

The Adult Transition Team (ATT) has successfully engaged an AB 

109 assigned individual for two years and has assisted with skills 

development during this time. ATT staff have worked diligently 

to help this individual complete probation, comply with 

medications, obtain benefits, and focus on mental health 

treatment. The individual was able to build the confidence to 

mend previously strained personal relationships with his family, 

allowing for a familial support system. The individual’s progress 

has allowed him to move out of a sober living home and into his 

family home. The individual has remained proactive in 

continuing his mental health treatment and has expressed 

gratitude to ATT for assisting with family reunification.  



1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

506

116

413

639

2,130

1,121

2,527

2,786

551

216

207

251

473

202

202

375

213

70

252

378

292

72

166

325

4,165

1,797

3,767

4,754

6,551Total Filings

Totals

Type

Requests - Felony

Requests - Misdemeanor

Requests - Felony

Filings - Misdemeanor

Requests - Felony

Requests - Misdemeanor

Filings - Misdemeanor

Filings - Felony

Filings - Felony

Filings - Felony

Filings - Felony

Filings - Misdemeanor

Filings - Misdemeanor

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
AB 109 DATA TRACKERS

DASHBOARD REPORT
FY 24/25 - 1st Quarter

July 1, 2024 - September 30, 2024

Requests - Misdemeanor

Requests - Felony

Requests - Misdemeanor

Requests - Felony

Requests - Misdemeanor

Filings - Felony

Misdemeanor Requests

Misdemeanor Filings

Branch

Arvin/Lamont

Bakersfield

Delano

Mojave

Ridgecrest

Shafter

Felony Requests

Felony Filings

Filings - Felony

Filings - Misdemeanor

Filings - Misdemeanor

Requests - Misdemeanor

Requests - Felony

1,753 

1,589 

2,018 

1,673 

1,167 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

2,000 

2,500 

FY    20/21    1st Qtr FY    21/22    1st Qtr FY    22/23   1st Qtr FY    23/24   1st Qtr FY    24/25   1st Qtr 

Felony Filings 

5,655 

3,701 

6,536 

6,925 

5,146 

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

 7,000

 8,000

FY    20/21    1st Qtr FY    21/22    1st Qtr FY    22/23   1st Qtr FY    23/24   1st Qtr FY    24/25   1st Qtr 

Total Filings 



COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATIONS (CBO's)

AB 109 Data Trackers Report

FY 24/25 - 1st Quarter (CBO 3rd Quarter*) July 1, 2024 - September 30, 2024

Success Story

28

47

11

30

13

7

20

14

35

3

74

54

46

25

36

41

21

21

0

13

0 15 30 45 60 75 90 105

Freedom House*

New Life*

Garden Pathways

Cottage of Hope*

BRS

STEPS

One Door

Third Tradition*

WestCare

Brown Family Home*

Sheriff

Probation

Enrollments

Sober Living, 
72%

Mentoring, 
11%

DUI Education, 10%

Case Management, 
7%

Participants by Service Type

240

62

89

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Treatment Education Employment

Service Participation by 
SLE Clients*

*Clients may be counted more than once

$846,522 

$741,003 

$602,216 

$543,460 

$369,271 

$234,463 

$151,933 $123,616 $107,529 
$24,300 

-$100,000

$400,000

$900,000

$1,400,000

$1,900,000

$2,400,000

New Life* Freedom
House*

BRS Garden
Pathways

Cottage of
Hope*

Third
Tradition*

WestCare STEPS One Door Brown
Family
Home*

Funding

Remaining

Expended

22%

58%

65%

68%

70%

79%

83%

83%

93%

94%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

COTTAGE OF HOPE*

BRS

NEW LIFE*

BROWN FAMILY HOME*

FREEDOM HOUSE*

WESTCARE

STEPS

THIRD TRADITION*

ONE DOOR

GARDEN PATHWAYS

Retention Rate

Many of the Community-Based Organizations have seen some great successes for the participants going through the programs. In one of the Sober-Living Environments, a former AB 109 participant that had completed the
program reached out to let staff know that since beginning courses at California State University, Bakersfield during their stay at the home, they have earned their bachelor's degree and certification in Drug and Alcohol Abuse
Counseling and is actively working in the substance use disorder treatment field and maintaining their own sobriety. Similarly, one of the community-based organizations performing case management services has seen 9
participants obtain employment within a few weeks of release from jail.



1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

2,042

3,535

303

92

358

186

290

245

303

109

415

149

538

2,823

5,439

303

8,565

Total

Felony

Misdemeanor

Violations

TOTAL Total Assignments

Shafter
Felony

Misdemeanor

Lamont, Arvin, & 

Taft

Felony

Misdemeanor

Mojave
Felony

Misdemeanor

Delano
Felony

Misdemeanor

Bakersfield

Felony

Misdemeanor

Violation

Ridgecrest & Kern 

River

Felony

Misdemeanor

     PUBLIC DEFENDER
     AB 109 DATA TRACKERS

     FY 24/25 - 1st Quarter
    July 1, 2024 - September 30, 2024

Branch Assignments

2,346

2,931 2,921
2777

2823

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

FY 20/21
1st Qtr

FY 21/22
1st Qtr

FY 22/23
1st Qtr

FY 23/24
1st Qtr

FY 24/25
1st Qtr

Felony Assignments

6,012

7,496

6,675
6,509

8,565

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

FY 20/21
1st Qtr

FY 21/22
1st Qtr

FY 22/23
1st Qtr

FY 23/24
1st Qtr

FY 24/25
1st Qtr

Total Assignments



AB 109 Data Trackers

  Dashboard Report

Employers' Training Resource

America's Job Center of California

  FY 24-25 1st Quarter           l

Apr July 1, 2024 - September 30, 2024  

Male Female

27 5

Referrals

Referral Status

Median Age

Enrollments by 

Gender

Success Stories and Updates

Employers' Training Resource (ETR) has increased their enrollment goal for this year from 100 to 125 participants. At the start of

this quarter, ETR has placed 5 new participants in Paid Work Experience (PWEX). ETR was able to enroll up to 25.6% of their annual

goal starting this first quarter. In addition, 7 participants that enrolled last fiscal year 2023-24 completed their (PWEX) during this

quarter. 

19 32 179 24 32 27.5

Employment or 

Training 

Placements

Post-Custody Positive Steps 

Class

Number of GED 

Module Tests Taken

Completed Lerdo Job 

Readiness Class
Enrollments

Enrollees' Education Level Number Enrolled by Offender Classification

198

69%

31%

Diploma or GED

H.S. Dropout

College Degree

Vocational Cert

Some College

2

12

22

32

42

52

62

Did Not
Report/No

Contact

No Show Missing RTW Working Client Refused
Services

Enrolled &
Scheduled for
Positive Steps

55

1
7 7

35

3
7

13
6

1 2

45

1 2 2
10

Referral Status

EMP

Probation

MS

PRCS

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

EMP

Probation

MS

PRCS

7

13

2

10



SIT Participating Agencies 
Assigned 

Personnel

Arvin Police Department 20

Bakersfield Police Department 112

Bear Valley Springs Police Department 0

California City Police Department 5

Delano Police Department 8

Kern County District Attorney 2

Kern County Probation Department 101

Kern County Sheriff's Office 9

Kern High School District 0

McFarland Police Department 22

Ridgecrest Police Department 85

Shafter Police Department 40

Stallion Springs Police Department 0

Taft Police Department 2

Tehachapi Police Department 2

Wasco Police Department 50

Other: Special Service Unit (PACT) 1

TOTAL PERSONNEL 459

Narcotics 61.49

Narcotics (Pills) 33

Ammo Seized 7

Currency Seized During Operations 5,350.00 

Vehicle Impounds 1 

Number of Operations 3

Number of Locations 4

Number of Days 15

Number of Agencies 6

July 1, 2024 - September 30, 2024

STREET INTERDICTION TEAM (SIT)
AB 109 DATA TRACKERS

DASHBOARD REPORT
FY 24/25 - 1st Quarter

Locations: Bakersfield, Inyokern, Ridgecrest, Wasco                                                                                                                       

Operations

Target Summary

Total Arrests

Seized Items

364

127

33

138

25

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

3

5

28

6

Probation Violations

Flash Incarceration

Misdemeanor Arrests (Open
Charges)

Felony Arrests (Open
Charges)

gms

$

Planned
Targets  

Targets
Located          

Contacts w/ 
Non-Targets

Searches Narcotics 
Violations



 

 

 

 

 

  

AB 109 DATA TRACKERS REPORT FY 24-25 
QUARTER 1 (July 1, 2024- September 30, 2024) 

 

Services Provided to Support 

Reintegration and Reduce 

Recidivism: 

• Service-Connected Disability 

• Apportionment 

• Pension 

• Medical 

• Vocational Rehabilitation 

• Housing Assistance 

• CalVet Tuition Waiver for 

Dependents 

• Benefit Reinstatement 

• Overpayment Assistance 

• Service Provider Referrals 

The Kern County Veterans Service Department (KCVSD) has a dedicated Veterans Service 
Representative (VSR) designated to provide benefit advocacy and case management to veterans 
(and their families) at any stage in the criminal justice system.  The initiative provides access to 
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) benefits, California Department of Veterans Affairs benefits, 
as well as referrals to other community groups in an effort to eliminate barriers to successful 
reintegration into the community and reduce the recidivism rate of veteran offenders. 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

Kern County Veterans Service Department
Veteran Contacts New Benefits Apportionment Housing

Benefit Reinstatement Medical Voc-Rehab Dependent Tuition Waiver

KCVSD has established a direct line of communication to incarcerated veterans via Kern Valley State Prison 

psychologists; this provides an opportunity to assist these incarcerated veterans by filing claims related to 

psychological trauma suffered during their time in service.  Staff and inmates have the means of 

communicating through Zoom on tablets provided by the state prison.  Future goals of KCVSD is to develop 

similar connections within other institutions throughout Kern County. 



CCP Item #6 / EC Item #4


	CCP Item #0 Meeting Agenda 12-11-24 (F)
	CCP Item #1-EC Item #1 CCP Meeting Minutes 091124 (F)
	CCP Item #5 Data Trackers FY 2024-25 Q1
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 24-25 - Q1 KCSO
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 24-25 - Q1 KCPD
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 24-25 - Q1 KBHRS
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 24-25 - Q1 DA
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 24-25 - Q1 CBO
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 24-25 - Q1 PD
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 24-25 - Q1 ETR
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 24-25 - Q1 SIT
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 24-25 - Q1 VS

	CCP Item #6-EC Item #4 ETR Contingency Fund Request



